UNIVERSITY OF LATVIA

BALTIC STUDY COURSES (BACHELOR LEVEL)
Spring semester 2013
[04.02.2013 – 02.06.2013]
	LATVIAN FOLKLORE AND LITERATURE   

(2 credits*)    

Code: Folk4012 

dr. R.Auškāps
	on Thursdays

Raiņa Blvd. 19

Auditorium 2
	from 07.02.13 till 21.03.13
	10.30 – 14.00

	THE HISTORY OF BALTIC, PART II 

(end of 19th century - 2000)            

 (2 credits*)  

Code: Vēst2106
prof. A. Stranga
	on Fridays

Raiņa Blvd.19

Room 210 

	from 08.02.13  till 31.05.13
	14.30 – 16.00      

	A HISTORY OF LATVIAN CULTURE

(2 credits*)

Code: Vēst2102

lect. I.Runce
	on Mondays 

Raiņa Blvd. 19

Auditorium 2
	from 08.04.13 till 27.05.13
	14.30 – 18.00

	RECENT ECONOMIC 

DEVELOPMENT

OF LATVIA

 (2 credits*)  

Code: Ekon5069
prof. B.Sloka
	on Thursdays         

Aspazijas 

Blvd.5
Room  324

	from 04.04.13 till 23.05.13
	12.30 – 16.00                  

	A History of ethnic Minorities in Latvia

(2 credits*)

Code: Vēst2105

lect. I.Runce
	on Tuesdays
and Thursdays 

Raiņa Blvd. 19

Auditorium 2 
	from 05.02.13 till 28.02.13
	14.30 – 18.00

	INTERNATIONAL HUMAN RIGHTS STANDARTS IN THE BALTIC STATES 
(2 credits*)

Code: JurZ2024

Lect. A. Kučs


	on Wednesdays 

Raiņa Blvd. 19

Auditorium 2
	from 03.04.13 till 29.05.13
	10.30. – 14.00


!!! Please register for the courses with the lecturer of the respective course.
!Information on Holidays!
Easter Holidays 25.03.13 – 01.04.13

Restoration of Independence of Republic of Latvia 04.05.13 
(03.05.13 lectures will be held till 2 pm) 
*One Latvian credit point corresponds to 1,5ECTS credits
Latvian Folklore and Literature

Course code Folk4012; 

2 credit points 

Course developer: Dr. Raimonds Auskaps
Course abstract 
The course is designed to provide students with the basic background information for reading and analysing Latvian literature. Each author and each work is placed in its historical context. The course follows up the development of Latvian literature starting from its very origins in Latvian folklore, through National Awakening, during the Republic of Latvia between the two world wars, during the Soviet occupation, to contemporary writing. The course consists of lectures and discussions, paying attention to the most significant periods and authors. The students read and discuss the works of Latvian literature translated into English, linking the respective material with Latvian mentality and the concrete historical period.
Results 

During the course, the students are supposed to acquire basic facts about Latvian folklore and literature, develop the skill to analyse works of literature.
Course description-general outline 

1. The Concept and Subdivision of Folklore. Latvian Poetic Folklore, its Genres. Dainas. 
2. Narrative Folklore. Brachylogisms. Latvian Mythology. 
3. National Awakening of 19th c. New Latvians. J.Alunāns. Brothers Kaudzīte. “The Time of Land-surveyors”. A.Pumpurs. “Lāčplēsis”. 
4. Romantic Poetry of Auseklis. Apsīšu Jēkabs. “Rich Relatives”. Creative work of A.Brigadere. 
5. Creative work of R.Blaumanis. Creative work of Aspazija, Creative work of Rainis. 
6. Innovative poetry of E.Veidenbaums. Creative work of J.Jaunsudrabiņš. Creative work of J.Poruks. Creative work of V.Plūdons. 
7. Creative work of A.Upīts. Fairy-tales of K.Skalbe. E.Virza. “Straumēni”. Stories of J.Ezeriņš. Creative work of A.Grīns. 
8. Personality of Z.Mauriņa. Creative work of A.Čaks. Stories and Novels of Z.Skujiņš. Dramaturgy of G.Priede. Creative work of R.Ezera. Creative work of V.Belševica. Creative work of O.Vācietis. Creative wirk of I.Ziedonis. Novels of A.Bels. Creative work of M.Zālīte. Review of Creative work of Young Writers. 

Requirements for obtaining credit points 
There are discussions during the course. At the end of the course there is a written examination, in which students analyse a concrete work of Latvian literature.
The History of Baltic, part 2. The End of the 19 c.-2000

Course code 
Vēst2106

Credit points 
2

ECTS creditpoints 
3

Total Contact Hours 
32

Number of hours for lectures 
24

Number of hours for seminars and practical assignments 
8

Independent study hours 
48

Date of course confirmation 
14.06.2011

Responsible Unit 
Faculty of History and Philosophy

Course developers Aivars Stranga

Replaced courseVēst2106 [2VES2132] The History of Baltic, part 2. The End of the 19 c.-2000
Course abstract

The course deals with the main problems of political, economic and cultural history of the Baltic region since the middle of the 19th century - so called National Awakenings, including a lot of material about the period of the independent states (1918 – 40; since 1990). Course deals with the main problems in historiography; the questions of common and different features in the history of Baltic nations, countries and states, with emphasis on relations with great powers (Russia, Germany), as well as the main problems of religious and cultural life, art will be covered. The history of ethnic and religious minorities will receive its due also, especially - the history of Baltic Germans, local polish, Jewish and Russian minorities.

Learning outcomes

Students will be competent to understand the history of Eastern Europe and integrate this knowledge into more wider understanding of all Europeans history. Course is specially usefull to the students from another continents - USA, China, Japan. During their stay in Latvia they would get a knowledge of i an interesting state, nation and culture.

Course plan

1. Introduction into the course. Historiography. L 2

2. The Baltic Provinces in Russia: cultural, economical and political development. The national movements in Baltic: 1850–1880. L 4

3. The Revolution of 1905 in Baltics. The specific features in Latvia. L 2

4. The First World War. German occupation. Collapse of Imperial Russia and Kaiser’s Germany. Latvians, Lithuanians and Estonians in Russian Revolution and Civil War. The Struggle for Independence: 1918–1920. L 4

5. The Creation of the Independent Baltic States: 1918–1920. S 2

6. The Independent Baltic States: political, economical and cultural development in 1920–1940. Foreign Policy. L 4

7. The Destiny of Liberal Democracy. Foreign Policy. S 2

8. Molotov – Ribbentrop Pact. Soviet Occupation. 1940–1941. S 2

9. Nazi Occupation: 1941 – 44 (45): Collaboration and Resistance. Holocaust. L 2

10. The Second Soviet Occupation (Reoccupation). Political, economical, demographical results of soviet and nazi occupation. S 2

11. The Baltic States under Soviet Occupation: 1945 – 1990 –1991. L 2

12. The Restoration of the Independence. L 2

13. Conclusions. L 2

Requirements for awarding credit points

1. Students will be expected to prepare readings and present an oral papers during the seminars - 60 %

2. Exam - Students will also write one final paper (18 000-20 000 points, double spaced, 12 point). - 40 %

Compulsory reading

1. A. Plakans. The Latvians. A Short History. Stanford, 1995.

2. T.U. Raun. Estonia and the Estonians. Stanford, 2001.

3. Z. Kiaupa. The History of Lithuania. Vilnius, 2000.

4. T. Venclova. Vilnius. - Vilnius, 2002.

4. J. Hiden, P. Salmon. The Baltic Nations and Europe. – London, 1994.

5. D. Kirby. The Baltic World. 1795 – 1993 – London, 1994.

6. Z. Kiaupa, A. Maesalu. The History of The Baltic countries. – Tallin, 2000.

7. History of Latvia. The 20th Century. – Riga, 2006.

8. A. Plakans. A Concise History of The Baltic States. - Cambridge, 2011.

Further reading

1. R. Misiunas, R. Taagepera. The Baltic States: Years of Dependence. 1940 – 1990. – London, 1993.

2. A.Ezergailis. The Holocaust in Latvia. 1941 – 1944. – Riga, 1996.

3. The Hidden and Forbidden History of Latvia Under Soviet And Nazi Occupation. 1940. – 1991. – Riga, 2005.

4. Saulius Suziedelis. Historical Dictionary of Lithuania. – London, 1997.

5. A. Eidintas, V. Zalis. Lithuania in European Politics. – New York, 1997

6.The Anti - Soviet Resistance in the Baltic States. - Vilnius, 2002.

7. M. Ilmjarv. Silent Submission. – Stockholm, 2004.

8. Š. Liekis. 1939. The Year That Changed Everything in LIthuania's History. - New - York, 2010.

9. Suzanne Champonnois, FRancois de Labriolle. La Lettonie. - Paris, 1999.

Periodicals and other sources

1. Journal of the Baltic Studies.

2. Symposium of the Commission of the Historians of Latvia (electronic version)- Vol. 1 - 25.

3.Studia Baltica Stockholmiensia. Vol. 1 - 25.

4. Lithuanian Historical Studies. Vol. 1 - 13 - Vilnius, Lithuanian Institute of History. 1996 - 2010.
A History of Latvian Culture: 20th Century
Course code Vēst2102 

Credit points 2  

ECTS creditpoints 3 
Total Contact Hours 32 

Number of hours for lectures 16 

Number of hours for seminars and practical assignments 16 

Independent study hours 48 

Date of course confirmation 06.07.2011 

Responsible Unit Faculty of History and Philosophy  

 Course developers Inese Runce
Prerequisite knowledge  Vēst2030, Latvia in 20.th century 
Replaced course  Vēst2102 [2VES2125] A History of Latvian culture: 20th century
Course abstract 

Course is based on the chronological principles. In terms of certain historical period, certain cultural processed are analyzed in 20th century and contemporary Latvia, paying more attention towards the history of intellectual thoughts and cultural development under different political, economical and ideological influences. 
Students will have thematic lectures in Riga's museums, group discussions, and movie analysis 

Learning outcomes 

Students will gain knowledge and understanding of cultural processes in Latvia in 20th century, learn cultural facts, ideas and detect the most famous Latvian intellectuals, visit museums etc. 

Course plan 

1.The short introduction in the previous development of Latvian culture, especially paying attention towards 19th century and its major aspects. The influence of industrialization in cultural development. The Marxist ideas and its popularity in the Latvian society. The national question and segmented society – a transition from social society to the nationally segmented society. The revolution of 1905 and its influence in culture. The development of secular culture. The celebration of Riga’s jubilee. Art Novou in Riga. (2L; 2S) 
2. Culture in Latvia: 1914 – 1920 under the First World War and the revolutions of 1917. The Red terror and the influence of Bolshevistic ideology on cultural processes. The localization of Latvian culture during the Bolshevistic regime. Latvians in the Soviet Russia and their cultural rise and fall in 20s and 30s of 20th century. (2L; 2S) 
3. The development of culture during the independent Latvia: 1920 – 1940. The rise of national culture and national consciousness. Latvian culture in the European and world’s context. The regionalism in Latvian culture. The impact of K.Ulmanis’ coupe on cultural processes. (2L; 2S) 
4. Latvian culture under the Soviet and Nazi occupation power: 1940-1945. (2L; 2S) 
5. The major periods of cultural development during the second period of the Soviet occupation, the main achievements and failures. The impact of Khrushchev’s reform period on culture in Latvia. The national protests and its flash on cultural life. The problem of Church in the Communistic ideology. (2L; 2S) 
6. The culture of Latvian exile in the Western Europe, North America and Australia. (2L; 2S) 
7. Latvian culture during the Third Awakening process. Decolonization and democratization of culture. (2L; 2S) 
8. Cultural processes in Latvia after the reestablishing of independence: 1991 – 2003. Latvian culture in the context of Europe and the problem of globalization. The cultural life of national minorities in Latvia. The search of new identity. (2L; 2S) 

Requirements for awarding credit points 

Attendance – optional 
Seminars and practical classes: 50% 
Written exam and study diaries – 50% 

Compulsory reading 

1.Kasekamp A. A History of the Baltic States.- Palgrave Macmillan, 2010 
2. Latvia. 20th century. Riga, 2006. 
3. John Hiden, Patrick Salmon. The Baltic Nations and Europe. Estonia, Latvia, Lithuania in the Twentieth Century. London, Longman, 1994. 
4. Russification in the Baltic Provinces and Finland: 1855.-1914. Princeton, 1981. 
5. Riga 2001: 800 Jahre Riga. Riga heute. Rigas Jahrhunderte. Riga, 2001. 
6. A. Plakans. The Latvians. A Short History. – Stanford, 1995. 
7. Hausmanis V. Latviešu teātris trimdā.- Rīga, 2005. 
8. Post-Cold War Identity Politics: Northern and Baltic Experiences (Routledge Studies in Nationalism and Ethnicity) by Marko Lehti and David J Smith, 2003; 
9. The Ethnic Dimension in Politics and Culture in the Baltic Countries: 1920-1945.-Soderntorns Hogskola, 2004 Further reading 

1. Lieven A. The Baltic Revolution. – London, 1994. 
2. The issues of the Holocaust research in Latvia. Reports on an International Conference, Riga, 2001. 
3. Policy of occupation Powers in Latvia: 1939-1991. Riga, Nordic, 1999. 
4. Cultural policy in Latvia. Riga, 1998. 
5. Kalnačs J. Tēlotājas mākslas dzīve nacistiskās Vācijas okupētajā Latvijā, 1941-1945. Rīga, 2006. 
6. Talonen J. Baznīca staļinisma žņaugos.- Rīga, 2009. 
7. Karklins R. Ethnic Relations in the USSR: The Perspective from Below, Boston and London: Allen & Unwin, 1986. Periodicals and other sources 

www.letonica.lv  
www.estonica.es 
www.lituanistica.lt
Recent Economic Development of Latvia

Course code Ekon5069 

Credit points 2 

ECTS creditpoints 3 

Total Contact Hours 32 Number of hours for lectures 16 

Number of hours for seminars and practical assignments 16 

Independent study hours 48 Date of course confirmation 20.01.2011 

Responsible Unit Faculty of Economics and Management   

Course developers Biruta Sloka
Replaced course Ekon5069 [2EKO5069] Recent Economic Development of Latvia

Course abstract 

The aim of the respective course is to introduce foreign students with Economic development of Latvia in historical and current actual issues prospective. During the course comparisons are given with other Baltic countries. In course materials of Central Statistical Bureau, Bank of Latvia and other institutions are used. Students will get updated information on latest publications, recent information on materials available on the internet, recent information on economic actualities in Latvia.

 Learning outcomes 

After successful finish of the course, students get basic understanding about the economic development in Latvia, achievements, on news in statistical data bases and scientific publications. During the course exchange of information on current issues in economic development, often guests from ministries are invited to encourage discussions on economic actualities. During the course students get 200 pages of material in electronic version. They are reports of other students on course topics. 

Course plan 

1.Economic Situation: Brief Overview: comparison with other Baltic countries in the context of economic development L1; S1 
2.GDP and development tendencies L1; S1 
3.Structure of the national economy L1; S1 
4.Regional development and standard of living L1; S1 
5.State finances L1; S1 
6.Prices. Development of prices in Latvia L1; S1 
7.Balance of payment. Foreign direct investment L1; S1 
8.Finance and capital markets L1; S1 
9.Labour market, development and problems L1; S1 
10.National Lisbon Programme of Latvia. Integration of Latvia in the Economic and Structural Policy of the EU L1; S1 
11.Sector-Specific Development Policies. Privatisation. Public – private partnership L1; S1 
12.Innovations and New Technologies. Information Society L1; S1 
13.Small and Medium-Sized Enterprises. Advisory Councils of the Ministry of Economics L1; S1 
14.Competition Policy. Regulation of Public Utilities. Protection of Consumer Interests and Market Surveillance L1; S1 
15.Quality Assurance L1; S1 
16.Export Promotion L1; S1 

Requirements for awarding credit points 

Active participation in seminars (20% of final evaluation); preparation of two individual home tasks (10%; 10%); preparation and presentation of one report (20%).During semester 60% of final evaluation, 40% - during final assessment (written exam). 

Compulsory reading 

1.Ziņojums par Latvijas tautsaimiecības attīstību. LR Ekonomikas ministrija, 2009. gada jūnijs, 132. lpp 
2.Latvijas tautsaimniecība: Makroekonomiskais apskats, LR Ekonomikas ministrija, katru gadu 4 izdevumi; 
3.R.Zīle, I.Šteinbuka, R.Počs, J.Krūmiņš, H.Ancāns, U.Cērps, J.Vīksniņš, Latvia Entering the XXI st Century. Economics. Integration. Finance, Nacionālais Medicīnas apgāds, 2000., 189 lpp. 
4.Convergence Programme of the Republic of Latvia, Ministry of Finance, 2008, 53 p. 
5.Latvian National Development Plan 2007 – 2013, Ministry of Regional Development and local government of Republic of Latvia, 2006, 56 p. 

Further reading 

1.Eksporta rokasgrāmata. Ceļvedis eksportā. LIAA, 2009, 103.lpp. 
2.LR Ekonomikas ministrija. Uzņēmumu klasteru veidošana, LR EM, 2007, 63.lpp. 

Periodicals and other sources 

1.Ekonomikas ministrija http://www.em.gov.lv/ 

2.Finanšu ministrija. http://www.fm.gov.lv/ 

3.Latvijas Banka http://www.bank.lv/ 

4.Latvijas Investīciju un attīstības aģentūra http://www.liaa.gov.lv/ 

5.Finanšu un kapitāla tirgus uzraudzības komisija http://www.fktk.lv/ 

6.Reģionālās attīstības un pašvaldību lietu ministrija http://www.raplm.gov.lv 

7.Labklājības ministrija http://www.lm.gov.lv/
8.Nodarbinātības valsts aģentūra http://www.nva.gov.lv/
9.Privatizācijas aģentūra http://www.lpa.bkc.lv/lpa/lpa  

10.Zinātnisko žurnālu datu bāze Sage Journals Online http://www.lu.lv/biblioteka/resursi/datubazes/ Zinātnisko žurnālu datu bāze EBSCO Zinātnisko žurnālu datu bāze EMERALD Zinātnisko žurnālu datu bāze Springer Link Zinātnisko žurnālu datu bāze Science Direct
A History of Ethnic Minorities in Latvia

Course code Vēst2105 

Credit points 2 

ECTS creditpoints 3 

Total Contact Hours 32 

Number of hours for lectures 28

Number of hours for seminars and practical assignments 4 

Independent study hours 48 

Date of course confirmation 03.01.2011 

Responsible Unit Faculty of History and Philosophy   

Course developers Inese Runce

Replaced course Vēst2105 [2VES2128] A History of Etnic Minorities in Latvia
Course abstract 

The aim of course is to give knowledge of processes and periods of formation of multicultural society of the Latvia and intellectual benefits of ethnic minorities in society of Latvia. In this course students will gather knowledge about certain ethnic minorities: Baltic – Germans, Jews, Poles, Russians, etc., from the beginnings till nowadays.

In terms of course agenda there will be organized practical classes at the museum "Jews in Latvia," Riga's Greneschikov community of Russsian Old believers, discussions and analysis of articles and study movies.

Learning outcomes 

This course will give deeper insight in the historical and cultural processes of development of cultural diversity and enrich understanding about Latvia’s variety and specifics of culture. As well this course will present history of ethnic groups in Latvia. This course will give possibility practically meet representatives of Latvian ethnic minorities and see their institutions in charge. 

Course plan 

1.The historical processes of multiethnic and multireligious development of Latvia’s society. The geopolitical aspects in history of Latvia. (L4) 
2. German cultural heritage in Latvia. The Baltic-Germans in Latvia: 13th -20th century. (L4) 
3. Russian cultural influence in Latvia. The old believers and their cultural and religious history in Latvia. (L4; S2) 
4. Polish cultural aspects in Latvia, particularly in region of Latgale and its cultural history. (L4) 
5. Jews in Latvia: 16th – 20th century. The most famous Jewish personalities in Latvia. (L4; S2) 
6. Estonians, Lithuanians, Byelorussians, Gypsies in Latvia. (L4) 
7. The question of ethnic minorities – the perspectives in future in Latvia. The creation of new identities. (L4)

Requirements for awarding credit points 

Attendance – not obligatory; 
Active participation in seminars, studies tours and practical classes – 50%; 
Exam (studies diaries) – 50% 

Compulsory reading 

1. Dribins L., Spārītis O. Vācbaltieši Latvijā. - R., 2000 (English summary). 

2. Apine I., Volkovs V. Latvijas krievu identitāte: vēsturiskais un socioloģiskais apcerējums.R., 2007; 

3. Bobe M. Jews in Latvia. Riga, 2006. 

4. Pabriks A. From Nationalism to Ethnic policy: The Latvian nation in the present and the past. Berlin, 1999. 

5. Hiden J., Housden M.Neighbours or enemies? Germans, the Baltics and beyond.NY, 2008. 

6. Jubulis Mark. Nationalism and Democratic tradition. NY, 2001.

7. The Old believers of Riga.- Riga, LU FSI, 2010, 135 lpp.

8. National Minorities. Multiculturalism. Education (eds. Helena Noksova, Petr Bednarik). - Prague, AV ČR, 2010, pg.238.

Further reading 

1. Šteimanis J. A history of Latvian Jews. – NY, 2003. 

2. Ceruzis R. The German factor in Latvia (1918-1939)//the summary of doctoral thesis. Riga, 2002. 

3. Die Deutche Volksgruppe im Lettland. Hamburg, 2000.

4. Latvia. 20th century. Riga, 2006. 

5. European soft security Policies: the Northern Dimension. Helsinki, 2002. 

6. Stranga A. Ebreji Baltijā. Rīga, 2008.

7. Latvijas ebreji un padomju vara: 1928.-1953. - Rīga, LU FSI, 2009, 306 lpp.

Periodicals and other sources 

1. www.staroveri.lv 

2. www.vecticiba.lv 

3. www.jews.lv
4. žurnāls "Ethnicity. Politics of recognition." 2010-2011 -  pieejams arī elektroniski LU filozofijas un socioloģijas institūta mājas lapā www.fsi.lv
International Human Rights Standards in the Baltic States
Course code
JurZ2024

Credit points
2

ECTS creditpoints
3

Total Contact Hours
32

Number of hours for lectures
24

Number of hours for seminars and practical assignments
8

Date of course confirmation
28.02.2005

Responsible Unit
Faculty of Law

Responsible course teaching staff
Artūrs Kučs

Course developers Artūrs Kučs

Course abstract

The course provides an opportunity to study the basics of the international human rights law and the implementation of the international human rights standards in the Baltic States. 

At the beginning of the course there will be an introduction in the basics of international law and human rights law, models of interrelation between the national and international law in order to facilitate the better understanding of the course for those students who do not have a legal background. 

The course comprises the study of the international human rights protection system and the main United Nations human rights treaties. This is followed by the analysis of the human rights protection system established in Europe and its impact on the development of human rights in the Baltic States. 

The final part of the course is devoted to the comparative study of international human right standards in the Baltic States, the progress and problems identified in their implementation. Furthermore, the human rights guarantees in the national constitutions and human rights protection mechanisms at the state level will be analyzed. 

The course consists of 12 lectures and 4 seminars.

Compulsory reading

1.R.Hanski and M.Suksi, An Introduction to the International Protection of Human Rights. 2nd edition, Institute for Human Rights, Abo Akademi University, 1999. 

2.D.Gomien, Short guide to the European Convention on Human Rights. 2nd edition. Council of Europe Publishing. 2000. 

3.Nowak Manfred. "U.N. Covenant on Civil and Political Rights, CCPR Commentary". N.P.Engel, Publisher, 1993, 

4. Constitution and Human Rights, Yearbook 1999, Latvian Human Rights Quarterly, 7-10, 1999

Further reading

1. Luzius Wildhaber, Protection against discrimination under the European Convention on Human Rights - a second class Guarantee? // Riga Graduate School of Law Working Paper Nr.1, Riga, 2001. 

2. P. Van Dijk, G.J.H van Hoof, Theory and Practice of the European Convention on Human Rights, 3rd edition, Kluwer Law International, 1998. 

3. Baltic Yearbook of International Law, Kluwer Law International, Volume 2, 2002. 

Internet resources: 

1.Lietuvas Republikas Konstitucionālās tiesas mājas lapa: http://www.lrkt.lt 

2.Latvijas Republikas Konstitucionālās tiesas mājas lapa: http:// satv.tiesa.gov.lv 

3.ANO cilvēktiesību līgumus uzraugošo institūciju datu bāze:http://www.bayefsky.com/ 

4.Eiropas Cilvēktiesību tiesas datu bāze: http:// hudoc.echr.coe.int

Periodicals and other sources

1.European Human Rights Review. 

2.Netherlands Quarterly of Human Rights. 

3. Baltic Yearbook of International Law.stitute of History. 1996 - 2010.



